
 
 

M inutes of the Executive Board M eeting on September 17, 2008 
 

The eighth regularly scheduled meeting of  GAPSA Executive Board was convened on 
September 17, 2008 at 5:12 PM in the second fl oor conference room of the Graduate Student 
Center. 
 
 
Rol l  Cal l  and Declar at ion of  Quor um 
 
Present were: Andrew Rennekamp, Sarah Smith, Nikki Thorpe, Alexandra Kotsovos, 
Alejandro Hagan, Christa Heyward, Natalie Williams, Mat Abramsky, Jessica Kim, Esther 
Agbaje and Christina Arl t. 
 
 
Approval  of the M inut es f r om Pr ior  M eet i ngs 
 
The changes to last meetingÕs minutes put forth by GAPSA Chair Andrew Rennekamp and 
Vice Chair for Student Life Nikki Thorpe were unanimously approved. 
 
 
Repor ts 
 
ChairÕs Report 
 
GAPSA Chair Andrew Rennekamp thanked the entire Executive Board for all that i ts 
members have done.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that GAPSA is of f to a good start. 
 
VPUL Lunch 
 
Mr. Rennekamp stated that the lunch with the Vice Provost for Universi ty Life is scheduled 
for  12pm Wednesday, October 1st and this is the same day as the GAPSA-Provost 
Interdisciplinary Awards Reception.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that any Executive Member may 
attend and should email him if  anyone would like to go.  As of  now, Vice Chair for Equity and 
Access Esther Agbaje, Interim Vice Chair for International Af fairs Natalie Williams, Vice 
Chair for Social Activi ties Jessica Kim and Vice Chair for Finance Christa Heyward will be 
attending.  Ms. Heyward stated that this meeting originally was supposed to be a meeting with 
underrepresented students that Brian organized.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that this meeting is 
not solely for GAPSA and that GAPSA is not bringing any agenda i tems to this meeting. 
 
School Government (G12) Leaders Reception on October 15, 2008 
 
The G12 Reception will be in the Golkin Room in Houston Hall  on October 15th.  Mr. 
Rennekamp stated that i f alcohol is served at an event in Houston Hall , there is specifi c 
protocol to register this event properly.   First Vice Chair Alejandro Hagan stated that he 
could fi nd out how to register this event and Vice Chair for Operations Sarah Smith stated 
that she could help out as well.  Vice Chair for Professional Students Mat Abramsky asked 
whether invi tations to this event had been sent out.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that they had 
been sent.  Mr. Abramsky suggested that each Executive Member remember which school 
they promoted GAPSA at that schoolÕs New Student Orientation and ensure that the 



 
 
President of  that school attends the G12 Reception.  Mr. Abramsky stated that this would be 
very valuable for the Professional Council .  Mr. Rennekamp stated that since former Vice 
Chair for International Affairs Saurabh Madaan had previously promoted GAPSA at the 
Engineering SchoolÕs NSO, Ms. Williams should contact that schoolÕs student government 
president.  Vice Chair for Communications Alexandra Kotsovos stated that this reception is 
not listed on the GAPSA website under the events section.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that this 
event is listed under the special events section.  Ms. Smith stated she could send out a contact 
list for the G12 Leaders.  Mr. Rennekamp asked whether the event should be extended to 
each schoolÕs entire governmental board.  Ms. Heyward stated that i f only the school 
governmentsÕ presidents attend, 12 people would attend.  Mr. Hagan asked how much money 
should be spent on this event.  Mr. Abramsky noted that the Executive Board had previously 
decided not to invi te the GA representatives to this event.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that 
including the Executive Board members, 24 people would attend i f only the school 
governmentsÕ presidents were invi ted.  Mr. Abramsky suggested invi ting 2 more people from 
each school besides the presidents.  These extra two people per school could be a school 
representative or a GA representative.  Ms. Heyward noted that at last yearÕs G12 Reception, 
one other person from each school was invi ted to attend.  Mr. Abramsky suggested 
contacting the presidents to noti fy them that 2 extra people are invi ted to attend. 
 
Universi ty Council  Steering Committee 
  
Mr. Rennekamp stated that the first meeting of the Universi ty Council  Steering Committee 
met today to address and focus on five issues:  

1. Discussion of  diversity issues and ini tiatives on campus   
2. Discussion of  campus life issues:  af fordable housing for graduate students, dining 

services, retail  options, and Penn Transi t. 
3. Dialogue on PennÕs involvement in West Philadelphia and the greater 

Philadelphia communi ty   
4. Analysis of international issues: How does the University support international 

students and scholars on campus and how does the Universi ty protect and 
communicate with students and scholars who are studying and conducting research 
abroad, particularly when there is an emergency in the region where the student is 
studying. 

5. Discussion on metrics used by the Universi ty to measure the quali ty and 
effectiveness of  programs at Penn and how the results are communicated to the 
Universi ty communi ty  

 
Ms. Heyward stated that underrepresented students face similar issues; however, Ms. Heyward 
was unsure of  any mechanisms at the graduate school  level.  Ms. Kim stated that similar issues 
surround recruiting faculty.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that the committee focused on faculty 
last year.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that the Council  will be looking at diversi ty issues on 
campus and the interaction between Penn and West Philly. Mr. Rennekamp was pleased with 
the results f rom this meeting. 
 
Meeting with the UA Chair 
 
Mr. Rennekamp recently met with the Chair of  the Undergraduate Assembly and attended the 
recent UA meeting.  However, the UA does not yet have an extensive agenda as i t is still  
early in the semester. 
 
Ivy Summit Questionnaire 



 
 
 
Mr. Rennekamp emailed the Executive Board a questionnaire that will be submitted in the 
next few days to the Ivy Summit.  Mr. Rennekamp welcomes any comments concerning this 
document. I f there are none, the document will be submitted to the conference organizers at 
Harvard by the end of the week. 
 
Universi ty Council  Status Report 
 
Mr. Rennekamp also emailed the Executive Board this monthÕs GAPSA Status Report that 
will be submitted to the University Council.  Mr. Rennekamp welcomes any comments 
concerning this document, which will be submitted on Friday. 
 
 
First Vice ChairÕs Report 
 
Deputy Vice Chair 
 
First Vice Chair Alejandro Hagan announced that he has appointed Anthony Youngblood as 
his Deputy Vice Chair. 
 
School Government (G12) Meeting on October 15, 2008 
 
Mr. Hagan stated that the G12 Reception will need a bartender but not a bouncer.  GAPSA 
will purchase the wine and cheese.  Vice Chair for Finance Christa Heyward stated that 
GAPSA would need to have a university approved bartender.  Vice Chair for Communications 
Alexandra Kotsovos stated that GAPSA could contact the Penn Student Agency to fi nd a 
training bartender on campus. Ms. Heyward stated that the alcohol can be purchased at any 
state liquor store.  Mr. Hagan suggested identi fying attendees with bracelets.  Mr. Hagan will 
be meeting with Julia Lyzinski f rom the Offi ce of Alcohol and Strategic Ini tiatives to 
coordinate this.  Ms. Heyward noted that in the past BGAPSA had to register events with 
alcohol and that GAPSA should do this as well out of  courtesy to the administration.  Vice 
Chair for Operations Sarah Smith stated that she could talk to the Perelman Quadrangle 
scheduling coordinators and noti fy them that alcohol will be served at the G12 Reception.  
 
 
Vice Chair for Professional StudentsÕ Report 
 
Vice Chair for Professional Students Mat Abramsky stated that even this early in the 
semester he has been receiving a great deal of interest in travel grants.  Mr. Abramsky 
thanked GAPSA Chair Andrew Rennekamp for being so ef fi cient in his role as Chair.  Mr. 
Abramsky asked where the GAPSA mailbox is located.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that the 
mailbox is just outside the 2nd fl oor conference room in the Graduate Student Center.  Ms. 
Heyward mentioned that the mailbox needs new name labels.  Ms. Smith stated she could 
make labels.  Mr. Hagan noted that there should be a separate mail  slot for GradFest as well. 
 
 
Vice Chair for Research StudentsÕ Report 

GAPSA Chair Andrew Rennekamp fi lled in for the Vice Chair for Research Students.  Mr. 
Rennekamp will be meeting with the Director of  Libraries tomorrow as there is no current 



 
 
Vice Chair for Research Students.  The School of  Arts and Sciences published an article in the 
Daily Pennsylvanian concerning textbook prices.  The Director of Libraries is interested in 
the fact that the prices of textbooks are rising and he wants to provide a limi ted number of 
textbooks for students that would be available in the libraries.  Vice Chair for Finance Christa 
Heyward noted that some students purchase used textbooks.  Vice Chair for Professional 
Students Mar Abramsky asked why students are required to purchase course packs which 
contain non-copyrighted materials.  Mr. Abramsky stated that the problem lies not with 
textbooks, but with these course packs.  Vice Chair for Student Programs Christina Arl t stated 
that the Penn Library scans course readers free of  charge but that the professors are unaware 
of this.  Vice Chair for Social Activi ties Jessica Kim noted that BlackBoard contains a 
copyright warning.  Mr. Rennekamp stated he will bring this issue to the meeting with the 
Director of Libraries.  Ms. Arl t suggested helping the library advertise to the faculty that 
anything they give to Campus Copy or Wharton Reprographics could also be scanned in at 
the library.  Ms. Arl t stated that professors give the Penn Bookstore copies of their required 
book lists but are not required to send these book ti tles to the library.  Ms. Arl t suggested that 
professors should send the book lists to both the Bookstore and the library.  Mr. Abramsky 
stated that af ter Mr. Rennekamp attends this meeting to let him know if a professional 
student committee needs to be formed in order to deal with this issue.  Mr. Rennekamp stated 
that i f anyone would like to attend this meeting at 4pm tomorrow to email him.  Ms. 
Heyward asked i f in the weekly email noti fi cations concerning the open posi tions of Vice 
Chair for International Affairs and Vice Chair for Research Students could be added.  Vice 
Chair for Communications Alexandra Kotsovos stated that she would include this 
information in the GAPSA weekly emails.   Mr. Rennekamp stated that this information 
should be public.  Ms. Kim agreed, stating that i t would increase access to GAPSA. 
 
 
Vice Chair for International StudentsÕ Report 
 
Interim Vice Chair for International Students Natalie Williams stated that she is currently 
interviewing students for posi tions on the International Council. 
 
 
Vice Chair for Equity and AccessÕ Report 
 
Vice Chair for Equity and Access Esther Agbaje has been fi nalizing the last 20 seats on the 
various Universi ty Committees.  The underrepresented groups meeting with The Vice 
Provost for Universi ty Life, Val Cade will be held on October 1st.  First Vice Chair Alejandro 
Hagan has been directly receiving emails with applications for his committee.  Ms. Agbaje 
stated that Mr. Hagan could handle these applications on his own if  he did not feel 
overwhelmed. 
 
 
Vice Chair for FinanceÕs Report 
 
Vet School NSO 
 
Vice Chair for Finance Christa Heyward stated that she attended the Vet schoolÕs New 
Student Orientation to represent GAPSA and many students were in attendance.  
 
Meeting at the WomenÕs Center 
 



 
 
Ms. Heyward stated that the women of the Executive Board met with the new director of  the 
WomenÕs Center, Dr. Li tty Paxton, who is very eager to work with GAPSA. 
 
GA Happy Hour 
 
Ms. Heyward stated that last weekÕs GA happy hour topped of f  the weekly allotment with 
only one-third of  the representatives present.  Ms. Heyward stated that Mad Mex is not an 
alternative to POD, as Mad Mex refuses to accept passports f rom the international students 
as an acceptable form of ID.  New Deck is not possible as Wednesday nights is their Quizzo 
night.  Ms. Heyward suggested re-implementing the 2 drink maximum or closing the tab af ter 
one hour.  Vice Chair for Social Activi ties Jessica Kim asked what to do when some 
representatives stay for 30 minutes at the GA meeting, leave, and return specifi cally for the 
happy hour. Ms. Kim also suggested a 100 drink cap.  Vice Chair for Student Programs 
Christina Arl t suggested being more careful when handing out the drink tickets by only giving 
out 2 at a time.  
 
Vice Chair for Student LifeÕs Report 
 
Meeting with the Office of Off Campus Living 
 
Vice Chair for Student Life Nikki Thorpe stated that she and Deputy Vice Chair for Student 
Life Pierre Gooding met with Mi ki Farcas at the Office of Off Campus Living.  At the 
meeting, information on graduate student housing and other universi tiesÕ issued reports were 
discussed.  Ms. Thorpe stated she would have more information concerning this at the next 
Executive Board meeting. 
 
Housing &  Conference Services Advisory Board 
 
Ms. Thorpe stated that not many students are interested in sitting on the universi ty Housing 
and Conference Services Advisory Board.  Ms. Thorpe stated she has been actively recruiting 
in Sansom Place and will try the International Council next.  This committee does not have a 
regular meeting schedule. Ms. Thorpe mentioned that students may not know that Housing 
Services also oversees the Offi ce of  Off  Campus Living and not just Sansom Place.  Vice 
Chair for Professional Students Mat Abramsky stated he would forward information 
concerning this committee to the Real Estate Clubs. 
 
 
Vice Chair for Social ActivitiesÕ Report 
 
Vice Chair for Social Activi ties Jessica Kim stated that she may need some Executive Board 
members to help out at the Moshulu Annual Meet and Greet on September 25th.  The 
Atlantic City trip has been postponed to Saturday, November 1st.  The tickets to the last 
Phillies home game of the season go on sale tomorrow.  This event will occur on Saturday, 
September 27th.  The Dock Street Brewery happy hour will be on October 5th.  Ms. Kim is 
currently organizing the annual Halloween party and is in negotiations with a lounge located 
between Broad and 15th on South Street. 
 
 
Vice Chair for Student ProgramsÕ Report 
 



 
 
Vice Chair for Student Programs Christina Arl t announced that 36 of 47 tickets sold in the 
fi rst three days.  For the Eastern State Peni tentiary Haunted House Trip on October 3rd, 
51% of the tickets sold af ter three days.  The Linvilla Orchards trip is on Saturday, October 
11th.  Ms. Arl t will be meeting with her two Deputy Vice Chairs on Friday to discuss the 
possibili ty of surveying graduate students concerning types of  events.  Ms. Arl t welcomes any 
ideas for upcoming events.  Ms. Arl t stated that the Schuylkill River Kayak Tour on 
September 28th sold out so quickly that she is planning another kayak tour on October 19th.  
This time, however, tickets will be one per Penn ID.  Last time, students could purchase 2 
tickets per Penn ID. 
 
 
 
Vice Chair for CommunicationsÕ Report 
 
Vice Chair for Communications Alexandra Kotsovos had nothing to report. 
 
 
Vice Chair for OperationsÕ Report 
 
Vice Chair for Operations Sarah Smith sent out the invi tations specified by the GAPSA-
Provost Interdisciplinary Award recipients.   
 
Standing Committees 
 
Ms. Smith has also been compiling the General Assembly School RepresentativesÕ 
Certi fication of Appointment forms and the standing committee preferences, although not 
many of  these forms had been turned in.  Vice Chair for Social Activi ties Jessica Kim stated 
that she would like 8 people to si t on her standing committee.  Vice Chair for Student 
Programs Christina Arl t stated that she would like 5-6 or no more than 8 people to si t on her 
committee.  Vice Chair for Communications Alexandra Kotsovos stated that she would like 
2-3 people to si t on her committee.  Vice Chair for Finance Christa Heyward stated that she 
would like 8 people to si t on her committee.  Vice Chair for Student Life Nikki Thorpe stated 
that she would like 8-10 people to si t on her commi ttee.  First Vice Chair Alejandro Hagan 
stated that he would like 8 people to si t on a ÒGradFestÓ ad hoc committee of  the General 
Assmebly which would meet at the same time as the GA standing committees.  Ms. Thorpe 
suggested creating a similar ad hoc commi ttee to help run the Campus Climate Survey.  Ms. 
Heyward stated that some of the Finance Committee members could sit in this committee as 
the Finance committee will only meet twice during the semester.  GAPSA Chair Andrew 
Rennekamp asked whether the GA members know this.  Ms. Heyward stated that they did and 
liked this fact.  Mr. Rennekamp asked whether GAPSA should create an ad hoc committee to 
aid in the creation of  the Climate Survey.  Ms. Kim stated that GAPSA should.  Mr. 
Rennekamp stated that he was unsure whether having both a GradFest and a Climate Survey 
committee would detract f rom the Standing committees.  Ms. Heyward stated that the 
number of people on each standing committee could be reduced to accommodate these two 
extra committees.  Ms. Arl t stated she could have 5-6 people on her commi ttee and Ms. Kim 
stated she could have 7 people on her committee.  Mr. Hagan stated that he is recruiting 
people other than GA School Representatives to si t on his GradFest committee.  Mr. Hagan 
stated that he will have two GradFest committees: one to focus on event planning and one to 
focus on GradFest operations.  Mr. Rennekamp asked who would lead the Campus Climate 
Survey since i t could not be an Executive Board member who currently leads an existing 

admin! 9/28/08 10:22 AM
Comment: IÕm not sure which tickets these are! 



 
 
standing committee.  Mr. Rennekamp, Ms. Agbaje, and Ms. Smith currently do not lead a 
standing committee and Ms. Heyward of fered to help as well.   
 
 
New Busi ness 
 
Publicizing in GAPSA Weekly Emails 
 
Vice Chair for Communications Alexandra Kotsovos stated that there are a number of 
student groups expressing interest in publicizing their events in the GAPSA weekly emails.  
First Vice Chair Alejandro Hagan stated that only GAPSA sponsored events are included in 
these emails.  Ms. Kotsovos stated that technically this is not happening according to these 
rules.  GAPSA Chair Andrew Rennekamp stated that some administration-sponsored events 
are also included in the weekly emails.  Vice Chair for Finance Christa Heyward suggested that 
GAPSA include and integrate a Google Calendar for this. Ms. Kotsovos stated that a Google 
Calendar could be used to post any event, not just GAPSA events, since there is not enough 
room in an email to include all  events.  Ms. Kotsovos noted that there should be a place 
where students can find a listing of  all  events on campus.  Ms. Kotsovos stated she will put 
these student groupsÕ events on the Google Calendar and not in the GAPSA weekly emails.  
Vice Chair for Professional Students Mat Abramsky suggested draf ting a policy concerning 
i tems included in the GAPSA emails and distributing this in an email to the student groups.  
Mr. Rennekamp suggested including in this email information on putting events on the 
already existing Universi ty Calendar which can be accessed from the main Penn homepage. 
 
 
Committee Orientation Plans 
 
GAPSA Chair Andrew Rennekamp, Vice Chair for Equity and Access Esther Agbaje, and Vice 
Chair for Student Life Nikki Thorpe created an agenda for tonightÕs Universi ty Committee 
Orientation meeting.  There will be an introduction to GAPSA, an introduction on the 
structure of the University, information on committee member expectations and a chance 
for Student Life Policy Council and Pluralism Council breakout sessions.  Mr. Rennekamp 
suggested changing the agenda order so that the presentation on the Universi ty Structure 
(called ÒPenn101Ó) given by Ani ta Mastroeini and DeAnna Chung of  the Graduate Student 
Center would be fi rst.  Ms. Thorpe stated she only needed 10-15 minutes for her breakout 
session.  Mr. Abramsky asked whether Ms. Thorpe needed help.  Ms. Thorpe invi ted Mr. 
Abramsky and anyone else to si t in on her breakout session.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that i f 
an Executive Board member is not heading a policy council, then he or she is welcome to 
leave af ter the introductions.  
 
 
GA Meeting on 9/24 
 
Mr. Rennekamp suggested an agenda for the General Assembly meeting on September 24th

. 

The agenda would include a restatement that the election for Vice Chair for Research 
Students and for Vice Chair for International Affairs will be held on October 8th and the call  
for nominations.  Also included on the agenda will be approving the FY2009 (2008-2009) 
budget, approving Deputy Vice Chair appointments, approving University Committee 
appointments, approving Standing Committee appointments, and approving Vice Chair for 
Professional Students Mat AbramskyÕs appointment as Parliamentarian.  At this GA meeting, 
the Assembly will also discuss and set focus issues.  Mr. Abramsky suggested brainstorming 



 
 
focus issues at this GA meeting and then at the next GA meeting set the focus issues.  Mr. 
Rennekamp suggested mentioning to the GA that the Executive Board already had a 
brainstorming session on issues.  Mr. Abramsky suggested including a quick RobertÕs Rules 
lesson at the beginning of the meeting as well.  Vice Chair for Social Activi ties Jessica Kim 
stated that there will be new representatives at this second GA meeting and asked whether a 
re-introduction would be necessary.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that the Executive Board 
members will introduce themselves during the Executive Board reports. Ms. Heyward stated 
she would give the GAPSA monthly budget report i f i t is completed in time.  Mr. Abramsky 
stated one person from the Professional Council  may give a short report.  First Vice Chair 
Alejandro Hagan emphasized the importance of attendance as the GAPSA budget must be 
approved at this meeting.  Mr. Abramsky suggested each Executive Board member email his 
or her assigned school emphasizing attendance at General Assembly meetings.  Mr. 
Rennekamp stated he would send an email reminding the school government presidents 
 
Appointment to Trustees Committee on Academic Policy 
 
Mr. Rennekamp put forth a motion to appoint Vice Chair for Professional Students Mat 
Abramsky to the Trustees Committee on Academic Policy in place of resigned Vice Chair for 
Research Students Vick Doan-Nguyen.  Vice Chair for Student Programs Christina Arl t 
seconded the motion.  The motion passes unanimously. 
 
Funding the Mentoring Program 
 
Mr. Rennekamp stated that in the past GAPSA has helped fund the mentoring program 
between undergraduate and graduate students.  The Graduate Student Center expects GAPSA 
to contribute $900 this year.  Vice Chair for Finance Christa Heyward stated that for the past 
3 years GAPSA has funded this but i t was not included in the budget.  Vice Chair for Student 
Programs Christina Arl t stated that many graduate students sign up for this program but 
many are not matched with an undergraduate.  Ms. Arl t stated that the concern is whether 
GAPSA should fund this program when so many gradate students are not matched with a 
mentee.  Vice Chair for Finance Christa Heyward stated that many undergraduates have not 
heard of  this program.  Ms Heyward stated that the new Director of  the WomenÕs Center, 
Dr. Li tty Paxton, is also involved with the College Houses and will help with advertising for 
this.  Mr. Abramsky asked for what the funding is used.  Ms. Heyward stated that each mentor 
receives a $9 coffee card so that the mentor and mentee can go to Cosi and talk about issues.  
Vice Chair for Social Activi ties Jessica Kim stated that she believed the funding went towards 
supporting a Graduate Student Center graduate student fellow.  Ms. Arl t stated that this 
program is based on volunteering and no graduate student fellow.  Ms. Arl t also stated that 
there exists a disconnect between advertising and interest in this program.  Ms. Heyward 
stated that the funding also is used to pay a fellow to match up graduate and undergraduate 
students.  In addition, former GAPSA Chair Dan Grabell was concerned that the funding went 
towards benefi ting undergraduates.  Ms. Heyward stated that the program has already begun 
for this year.  Mr. Abramsky stated that the GAPSA budget has limitations and GAPSA 
cannot always abide by previous decisions. Ms. Heyward suggested that Ani ta Mastroeini, the 
Director of the Graduate Student Center, come to an Executive Board meeting to speak about 
this mentoring program. GAPSA Chair Andrew Rennekamp agreed to ask Ms. Mastroeini to 
present the mentorship program and funding request to the Executive Board at the next 
Executive Board meeting on October 1, 2008. 
 
Legal Services 
 



 
 
Mr. Rennekamp stated that he was recently reminded that GAPSA also cosponsors a legal 
services program, which is also not currently included in the GAPSA budget.  GAPSA gives 
funding so that students may receive free legal services.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that both the 
Undergraduate Assembly and GAPSA contribute to this.  Vice Chair for Finance Christa 
Heyward stated that she believed the UA paid for these services and opened i t up to graduate 
students.  Vice Chair for Communications Alexandra Kotsovos stated that the legal service is 
funded by the UA and the mentoring program is funded by GAPSA. Ms. Heyward stated that 
GAPSA does not fund the legal services program but about 50% of students utilizing this 
service are graduate students. Mr. Rennekamp will speak with the UA to see which programs 
the UA intends to fund this year.  Mr. Rennekamp asked to table this discussion until  more 
information is available.  The motion to fund the mentorship program in the amount of 
$900 was tabled.  
 
Tickets and the Graduate Student Center 
 
Mr. Rennekamp stated that the GSC recently has been overwhelmed with the number of 
tickets being sold through their of fi ce.  This is more of a timing issue and more attention 
should be paid when coordinating event dates and how many tickets are permi tted to be sold 
in one day.  Vice Chair for Student Programs Christina Arl t stated that she must noti fy the 
GSC one week in advance when the tickets to an event will be sold.  Ms. Arl t also attempts to 
allow 2 weeks for ticket sales.  Thus, she must have an event completely planned out 3 weeks 
in advance.  This creates backup at the GSC and the number of total tickets being sold 
through the GSC.  Mr. Rennekamp stated that Ms. Arl t and he have a separate meeting 
concerning this issue.  Vice Chair for Professional Students Mat Abramsky suggested the idea 
of online ticketing.  Mr. Rennekamp received an email f rom a Wharton student asking about 
GAPSAÕs interest in an online ticketing service called Òticketleap.comÓ.  However, issues 
exist i f GAPSA started selling tickets online.  Some students do not own a credit card and 
some events still require distribution of a paper ticket.  Mr. Abramsky suggested someone 
standing at the gate of  an event and handing out preordered tickets.  Ms. Arl t stated that this 
would be diffi cult to do.  Mr. Abramsky stated that members of  a standing committee could 
help out with this.  Mr. Rennekamp also mentioned that i t would be diffi cult to ensure that 
the person purchasing the ticket is 21 years of age and is a graduate or professional student at 
Penn.  Mr. Abramsky stated that he can envision solutions to these problems.  Ms. Arl t asked 
who would be checking the validity of these.  Mr. Abramsky stated that i f someone does not 
obey these rules, then they cannot enter the event.  Vice Chair for Finance Christa Heyward 
stated the ticket would then be wasted.  Vice Chair for Social Activi ties Jessica Kim stated 
that GAPSA would lose money as some of the event ticket costs are subsidized by GAPSA. 
 
Planning the Townhall  Meeting on October 22, 2008 
 
Mr. Rennekamp asked to table this until  the next meeting. The discussion was tabled. 
 
 
Adj our nment 
 
First Vice Chair Alejandro Hagan motioned for the adjournment of the meeting. Vice Chair 
for Student Programs Christina Arl t seconded. The meeting was adjourned at 6:28 pm 
 


